
DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY

AGENDA
COUNCIL MEETING 

7:00 PM TUESDAY AUGUST 14, 2018
MUNICIPAL HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

7360 COLUMBIA STREET 

Mayor:  Hank Bood 
Councillors:  Pat Corbett-Labatt, Dennis Dugas, Rick Marcotte, Fred Robertson, 

John Tidbury, Leightan Wishart 

Staff: Allison McCarrick, Chief Administrative Officer  
Heather Nelson-Smith, Director Corporate Services 
Lynda Sowerby, Director Financial Services 
Abbas Farahbakhsh, Director Operational Services  
Leslie Driemel, Recording Secretary 



DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

7:00 PM TUESDAY AUGUST 14, 2018 - COUNCIL CHAMBERS - MUNICIPAL HALL 

PAGE 

1-3

4-5

6-10

11-12

13 

14-15

16-18

19 

20 

21 

22-23

A. CALL TO ORDER Time: 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS PRESENTED (or amended)

Motion required. 1. 2.

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

1. Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held July 6, 2018.

Motion required. 1. 2.

2. Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held July 10, 2018.

Motion required. 1. 2.

3. Minutes of the Regular Council meeting held July 10, 2018.

Motion required. 1. 2.

4. Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meting held July 18, 2018.

Motion required. 1. 2.

D. DELEGATIONS AND REQUESTS TO ADDRESS COUNCIL

1. Brent Borg, Fire Chief Port Hardy Fire Rescue re: Quarterly Report to Council
(April – June 2018)

E. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Council Action Items. For information.

F. NEW BUSINESS

No new business in agenda package.

G. CORRESPONDENCE

1. Email from Office of the Premier (July17/18) re: Reply to Council letter of June 29, 2018
regarding the Wild Salmon Advisory Commission.  For information.

2. Email from Jolie White, Vancouver Island North Tourism re: Request from Tom Hermance,
President, Bella Coola Valley Tourism for letter of support requesting BC Ferries schedule
a mid-May start for 2019 Route 28 ferry service.

Motion / direction 1. 2.

3. Lieutenant-Colonel, Commander 39 Territorial Battalion Group, 39 Canadian Brigade, National
Defense (July 18/18) re: Thank you for supporting Ranger Glen Catarata. For information.

4. Wendy Booth, UBCM President (July 20/18) re: Gas Tax Agreement Community Works Fund
Payment of $116,110.99. For information.

5. S/Sgt. Wes Olsen – Port Hardy RCMP Detachment Commander (July 2018) re: Request for
letter of support for Indigenous Court for northern Vancouver Island.

Motion / direction 1. 2.

6. George Hanson, President Vancouver Island Economic Alliance (Aug.2/18) re: Request for a
letter of support for our application for Rural Dividend funding to work with industry, community
and First Nations stakeholders to pilot ideas for waste wood recovery and fuel reduction to
improve industry access to fibre and mitigate fire hazard.

Motion / direction 1. 2.



DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

7:00 PM TUESDAY AUGUST 14, 2018 - COUNCIL CHAMBERS - MUNICIPAL HALL 
 

24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26 
 
 
27-29 
 
 
30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31-33 
 
 
34-35 
 
 
 
 
36-38 
 
39 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Council letter of support for Seven Hills Golf and Country Club request for letter of support  
 for application to BC Rural Dividend Fund. Previously approved by email.  Council ratification 
 required. 
 
Motion required 1. 2. 
 
8. Council letter of support for Regional District of Mount Waddington application to the BC Rural 
 Dividend Fund re: Cabins on the North Coast Trail. Previously approved by email. Council 
 ratification required. 
 
Motion required 1. 2. 
 
H. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
1.  Verbal Reports from Council members. 
 
I.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
1.  Draft minutes of First Nations Relations Committee meeting held July 10, 2018.  
 For information. 
 
2.  Draft minutes of the Operational Services Committee meeting held July 16, 2018.  

For information.   
 
Water Conservation Bylaw 1050-12016 – Extract re: Stage 3 Restrictions 
The Operational Services Committee Recommends: 
 

 a) THAT Council amend Bylaw 1050-2016 as follows:  
Sec 3.1(v): 
From:  use water to wash sidewalks, driveways or parking lots, exterior windows or exterior 
building surfaces, except as necessary for applying a product such as paint, preservative and 
stucco, preparing a surface prior to paving or repointing bricks, or if required by law to comply 
with health or safety regulations 
To: use water to wash sidewalks, driveways, parking lots, exterior windows, exterior building 
surfaces, fences, retaining walls and all accessory buildings, structures except as necessary for 
applying a product such as paint, preservative and stucco, preparing a surface prior to paving or 
repainting bricks, or if required by law to comply with health or safety regulations and; 
 
Sec 3.2(c): 
From: Commercial operations requiring the use of water to further business.  
To: Commercial operations requiring the use of water to continue and maintain current service 
levels of its business operations. 

 
Motion / direction 1. 2. 
 

b)  THAT Council direct staff to survey local businesses over the winter months to see if they 
 are open to a ban on plastic bags.  

 
Motion / direction 1. 2. 
 
3.  Draft minutes of the Parks, Recreation Arts & Culture Committee meeting held July 18, 2018.  
 For information.  
 
4.  Draft minutes of the Emergency Planning Committee meeting held July 30, 2018.  
 For information. 
 
J. STAFF REPORTS 
 
1.  Accounts Payable July 2018. For information. 
 
2.  Allison McCarrick, CAO (Aug.14/18) re: Master Services Agreement for Curbside Recycling 
 Collection Services. 
 
 Motion / direction 1. 2. 
 
 



DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

7:00 PM TUESDAY AUGUST 14, 2018 - COUNCIL CHAMBERS - MUNICIPAL HALL 

40-44

45-52

53-56

57-59

60-61

62 

3. Heather Nelson-Smith, Director Corporate Services (Aug 1/18) re: Application for Development
Variance Permit – 8730 Seaview Drive.

Motion / direction 1. 2.

4. Lynda Sowerby, Director Financial Services (Aug 14/18) re: Business License application for a
Cannabis Retail store – User Rates & Fees 2018.

Motion / direction 1. 2.

5. Lynda Sowerby, Director Financial Services (Aug 14/18) re: Mechanic Shop Lift Hoist
Motion / direction                                                                               1 .               2 .                                  

K. CURRENT BYLAWS AND RESOLUTIONS
1. Heather Nelson-Smith, Director Corporate Services (Aug.1/18) re: 8625 Park Drive, OCP and

Zoning Bylaw amendments. For information.

a. Bylaw 1084-2018, A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw 15-2011.
To: Amend MAP 1 LAND-USE of Appendix A – Mapping, is amended by changing the land use
designation for the property legally described as Lot 4, Section 1, Township 8 Plan VIP61541
Except Part in Plan EPP68369 PID 023-107-171 Civic Address 8925 Park Drive from CD-1:
Comprehensive Development Zone 1 to P-2: Institutional. For First Reading.

Motion required. 1. 2

b. Bylaw 1085-2018 A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 1010-2013.
To: Amend Zoning Map – West is amended by changing the applicable zone of the property
legally described Lot 4, Section 1, Township 8 Plan VIP61541 Except Part in Plan EPP68369
PID 023-107-171 Civic Address 8925 Park Drive to P-2: Institutional. For First Reading.

Motion required. 1. 2

L. PENDING BYLAWS

1. Bylaw 1083-2018, A Bylaw to Provide for the Payment of Council Members Remuneration and
Expenses.

M. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

August 15 Committee: Parks, Recreation, Arts & Culture 3:00 pm Council Chambers 
August 20 Community Wellness, 11:00 am Council Chambers 
August 22 Port Hardy Twinning Society, 7:00 pm Council Chambers 
August 27 Committee: Operational Services, 3:00 pm Council Chambers 
August 29 Committee: Bear Smart, Noon Council Chambers 
August 30 Committee: OH&S, 8:30 am Council Chambers 
September 3 Labour Day – Municipal Hall Closed 
September 10-14 UBCM Convention – Whistler BC 
September 12 Heritage Society, 7:00 pm Council Chambers 
September 24 Property Tax Sale, 10:00 am Council Chambers 

Committee: Emergency Planning, Noon Council Chambers 
September 25 Committee: First Nations Relations, 3:00 pm Council Chambers 

Council: Regular Council meeting, 7:00 pm Council Chambers 

N. NOTICE OF IN CAMERA MEETING

No In Camera meeting scheduled at this time.

O. ADJOURNMENT

Motion required. 1. 2.   Time: 



MINUTES  
DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
FRIDAY JULY 6, 2018 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL HALL 
7360 COLUMBIA STREET 

PRESENT: Mayor Hank Bood, Councillors Pat Corbett-Labatt, Dennis Dugas, and Leightan 
Wishart  

ALSO PRESENT: Allison McCarrick, CAO; Glen Catarata, Recreation Facility Attendant; Leslie 
Driemel, Recording Secretary 

REGRETS: Councillors Rick Marcotte, John Tidbury and Fred Robertson; Abbas Farahbakhsh, 
Director of Operational Services; Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate 
Services Lynda Sowerby, Director of Financial Services;  

MEDIA: None MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:   None 

COW 2018-029 
APPROVAL OF 
AGENDA AS 
PRESENTED 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Bood called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm.

B.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole meeting of July 6, 2018 be 
accepted as presented. 

C. DELEGATION

1. Rob Martin and Ryan Moore, representatives of CIMCO Refrigeration re:
PowerPoint presentation on advantages and disadvantages of Ammonia vs Freon
as a refrigerant as well as CIMCO products.

Mayor Bood commented that it is a priority of Council to upgrade the District’s 
recreational facilities. Issues of interest are a heat reclamation feature for the arena 
that will tie in to the new multiplex building and the aging chiller at the arena.  

Mr. Martin and Mr. Moore’s presentation and discussion with Council included: 
- Review of CIMCO company and their experience in refrigeration.
- Purpose of visit to educate on options available for an arena refrigeration system.
- Considerations include: safety, efficiency, environment, cost, longevity, scalability.

Safety: 
- Main hazards of systems, past incidents, rarity of incidents considering number of

ice surfaces in North America.
- With proper design and maintenance refrigeration facilities are safe.
- Review of typical arena systems, improved reduction in charge tanks, plate and

frame heat exchangers.
- Monitoring and control systems.
- Control hazards through proper ventilation, detection, isolation points and

preventative maintenance.

1

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of Committee of the Whole – July 6, 2018 2 

Efficiency: 
- Efficiency factors include: selecting correct refrigerant for application and

conditions; use heat reclaim when possible; monitor energy consumption;
implement new technologies where possible.

Environmental 
- Regulatory considerations may change over time, can only implement to standards

of the day.
- Refrigerant choices and each of their environmental impacts.

Longevity: 
- Reliability of compressor types including hermetic, open reciprocation and open

screw.

Scalability: 
- Planning for expansion of ice surfaces including pumps, compressor and

condenser sizes and capacities.

Moving Forward 
Option 1: Replacement  
Advantages: Brand new plant, complete warranty, take advantage of new 
technologies.   
Disadvantages: Costs, may require building changes.  

- Option 1a: Replacement; lowest cost, commercial grade, adapted for rink
conditions, synthetic refrigerant.

- Option 1b: Synthetic refrigerant; industrial grade, engineered for rink conditions,
low charge.

- Option 1c: NH3 Refrigerant; industrial grade, engineered for rink conditions
low charge, smart connected.

- Option 1d: Any Refrigerant; industrial grade, engineered for rink conditions
low charge, inherent heat reclaim.

- Option 1e: CO2 Refrigerant; industrial grade, engineered for rink conditions
direct floor, available heat reclaim.

Option 2: Retrofit 
Advantages: reduced costs, take advantage of existing equipment, can take 
advantage of a lot of new technology, can do piece by piece. 
Disadvantages: not everything is new, partial warranty. 

- Option 2a: reduced costs, take advantage of existing equipment, can take
advantage of a lot of new tech, can do piece by piece “Smart Rink Connect”

- Option 2b: make use of existing infrastructure, add additional features, take
advantage of new technologies, reduce charge, potential for heat reclamation.

Option 3: Do Nothing 
Advantages: no cost 
Disadvantages: don’t address any of the concerns, no improvement to the plant, no 
improvement to safety, many other unknown factors. 

2



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of Committee of the Whole – July 6, 2018 3 

COW 2018-030 
ADJOURNMENT 

Discussion with Council included: 
- How to determine life of chiller.
- Operator certification requirements of the different refrigerant systems.
- Meshing controls on old equipment and new technology.
- Meshing heat reclamation between arena and multiplex systems.
- Improved monitoring with new equipment.
- New systems require less refrigerants – reduction in costs and risk.

Council members thanked Mr. Martin and Mr. Moore for their informative presentation. 

D. ADJOURNMENT

MOVED 
THAT the Committee of the Whole adjourn.   Time: 3:40 pm 

CORRECT  APPROVED 

__________________________________ ______________________ 
DIRECTOR MAYOR 
OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

3



MINUTES  
DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
TUESDAY JULY 10, 2018 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL HALL 
7360 COLUMBIA STREET 

PRESENT: Mayor Hank Bood, Councillors Pat Corbett-Labatt, Dennis Dugas, Rick Marcotte, 
Fred Robertson, John Tidbury and Leightan Wishart  

ALSO PRESENT: Allison McCarrick, CAO; Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate Services; 
Lynda Sowerby, Director of Financial Services 

REGRETS:  Abbas Farahbakhsh, Director of Operational Services 

MEDIA: None MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:   None 

COW 2018-031 
APPROVAL OF 
AGENDA AS 
PRESENTED 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Bood called the meeting to order at 6:30pm.

B.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole meeting of July 10, 2018 be 
accepted as presented. 

C. DELEGATION

1. Eric C. Bradley, P. Eng., Bradley Refrigeration Consultants Ltd.
(via telephone) re:  Don Cruickshank Memorial Ice Arena Refrigerant Review.

Mr. Bradley advised his report is a review of the different refrigerants that are 
commonly used for arena refrigeration and more specifically for the Don Cruickshank 
Memorial Ice Arena. 

Discussion with Council included: 
• The characteristics of Freon, carbon dioxide and low charge ammonia

refrigerants.
• Greenhouse gas factors.
• Characteristics and costs of each refrigerant.
• Actual vs perceived risks.
• Converting existing arena to low charge ammonia system.

Based on the information available, the recommendation is that an ammonia 
refrigerant be considered for the following reasons:  

• Lower risk with a low charge system.
• Lowest first cost.
• Long life of the equipment.
• Highest energy efficiency.
• Zero impact on ozone depletion.

The new technology for ammonia plants uses plate and frame chillers to reduce the 
ammonia charge. The plate and frame chiller uses titanium and stainless steel 
materials with an all welded construction to eliminate corrosion and joint failures.  

4

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of Committee of the Whole – July 10, 2018 2 

COW 2018-032 
ADJOURNMENT 

The low charge ammonia systems differ from the old systems where the charge is 
reduced from 800 lbs. to 75 lbs. for a single ice surface. With the reduced charge and 
improved ventilation systems, this has made the ammonia ice plants safer than in the 
past. 

The estimated cost of converting the existing ammonia plant to a new low charge 
ammonia plant is estimated at $600,000. 

Discussion included: 
- A low charge ammonia system is more energy efficient than the current

system.
- Heat recovery is available with the low charge ammonia system at 100% but

freon systems don’t usually provide 100% heat recovery.
- Phased replacement with a low charge ammonia system is possible.
- Risk assessment and training.
- Fire department responsibilities.
- Safe distances from the incident with current system up to 500 feet.
- Low charge ammonia can be disbursed in 60 seconds and the safe distance

from charge is the edge of the building.
- The switch can be activated from outside of the ammonia room.

Council members thanked Mr. Bradley and his informative presentation. 

D. ADJOURNMENT

MOVED 
THAT the Committee of the Whole adjourn.   Time: 6:57 pm 

CORRECT  APPROVED 

__________________________________ ______________________ 
DIRECTOR MAYOR 
OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

5



MINUTES OF THE DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

JULY 10, 2018 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL HALL 

7360 COLUMBIA STREET 

PRESENT: Mayor Hank Bood, Councillors Pat Corbett-Labatt, Dennis Dugas, Rick Marcotte 
Fred Robertson, John Tidbury, Leightan Wishart   

ALSO PRESENT: Allison McCarrick, Chief Administrative Officer; Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of 
Corporate Services; Lynda Sowerby, Director of Financial Services; Leslie Driemel, 
Recording Secretary 

REGRETS: Abbas Farahbakhsh, Director of Operational Services 

MEDIA: North Island Gazette  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: Three 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

2018-134 
AGENDA 
JULY 10/18 
ACCEPTED AS 
AMENDED 

2018-135 
COW MEETING 
MINUTES JUNE 
26/18 ACCEPTED 

2018-136 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
MINUTES JUNE 
26/18 ACCEPTED  

DELEGATION  
LESLIE DYCK RE:  
PlanH GRANT 
APPLICATION 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hank Bood called the meeting to order at 7:01pm.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Bood requested an addendum to the agenda:
D. Delegation: Debbie Perkovich re: District of Port Hardy support for Filomi Days.

Councillor Robertson requested an addendum to the agenda:
F. New Business: BC Ferries News Release dated July 10, 2018 re: Port Hardy to
Bella Coola direct service route.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the agenda for the Regular Council meeting of July 10, 2018 be accepted as 
amended.  

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

1. Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held June 26, 2018.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held June 26, 2018 be 
accepted.  

2. Minutes of the Regular Council meeting held June 26, 2018.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held June 26, 2018 be accepted. 

D. DELEGATIONS

1. Leslie Dyck, Planning Group – Food Security re: Support for PlanH grant
application of $5,000.

Ms. Dyck thanked Council for the opportunity to present information regarding the 
PlanH call for proposals for the Create Healthy Places grant program. 

Discussion with Council included: 
• Grant submission to be from a local government.
• Proposal to focus on developing a healthy natural environment, healthy food and

eating locally.
• Seasonal Food Challenge and other workshops can be planned to add to existing

community events.
6

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting – July 10, 2018         2 

DELEGATION: 
D. PERKOVICH,
FILOMI DAYS
COMMITTEE

2018-137 
FILOMI DAYS 
COMM REQUEST 
TO NEW BUSINESS 

ACTION ITEMS 

• Review of the support requested.
• If grant is successful the final details will be worked out.

Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate Services advised that Council action on 
the request can be discussed under Section G. Correspondence. 

2. Debbie Perkovich, Filomi Days Committee re: District contribution to Filomi Days;
concerns that District of Port Hardy cannot supply extra garbage cans,
commercial garbage bins and port-a-potties for Filomi Days.

Councillors Tidbury, Wishart, Dugas cited a conflict of interest and left the 
meeting.   Time: 7:14pm 

Discussion with Council included: 
• Filomi Days is a huge community event.
• Previous years support by the District.
• Ways and means to increase District support.

Moved/Seconded/Carried UNANIMOUS 
THAT the request from Debbie Perkovich for increased District of Port Hardy support 
for Filomi Days be moved to New Business. 

Councillors Tidbury, Wishart, Dugas joined the meeting.  Time: 7:19pm 

E. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Action Items

Council action items were received for information.

F. NEW BUSINESS

ADDENDUM:
1. Councillor Robertson re: BC Ferries News Release dated July 10, 2018 re: Port

Hardy to Bella Coola direct service route.

Councillor Robertson distributed and reviewed with Council the BC Ferries News 
Release dated July 10, 2018 regarding delays of BC Ferries direct Port Hardy to Bella 
Coola ferry service.   

Council discussed the capacity of the new ferry, delays in implementing the ferry 
service and economic effects on local and coastal tourism operators. 

Council directed staff to invite Mr. Mark Wilson, BC Ferries Vice President, Strategy & 
Community Engagement to an upcoming Council meeting.  

2. Debbie Perkovich, Filomi Days Committee re: request for increased District of
Port Hardy support for Filomi Days.

Councillors Tidbury, Wishart, Dugas cited a conflict of interest and left the 
meeting.   Time: 7:26pm 

Council discussion included: 
• Filomi Days is a huge community event.
• District of Port Hardy contribution from past years: financial and in kind.
• Rising costs every year and District funding has remained the same.
• Other recent events in the community has reduced financial support from local

businesses.
• Cost of port-a-potties has been reduced by contractor from $2,500 to $1,400.

7



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting – July 10, 2018         3 

2018-138 
FILOMI DAYS 
$1,400 DONATION 

2018-139 
SUBMISSION OF 
PLANH GRANT 
APPLICATON AND 
STAFF 
ADMINISTRATION 
APPROVED  

COUNCIL 
REPORTS 

• No litter bins in stock, would have to be purchased.
• Budget adjustments from one area to another would be required.

• Use of MRDT funds for additional grant.
• Current level of grant in aid budget.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT Council approve an additional $1,400 donation to the Filomi Days Committee. 

Council directed staff to add Filomi Days funding to the 2019 budget discussions. 

Councillors Tidbury, Wishart, Dugas joined the meeting.  Time: 7:43pm 

G. CORRESPONDENCE

1. Madyson Harris, Kaleigh Harris, Kayley Clair U17/18 Riptide Girls (July 2/18) re:
Thank you for donation was received for information.

Councillor Robertson advised the U17/18 Riptide Girls won the BC Provincial finals. 

2. Email from Monique Willis, Coordinator Industry Programs, Destination BC and
Heather Boyd, Manager, Vancouver Coast & Mountains and Industry Programs re:
2017 MRDT Annual and Financial Reports was received for information.

3. Leslie Dyck, Planning Group Food Security re: Request to submit for a PlanH grant
for $5,000 and request for staff support to file and financially administer the PlanH
grant; provide in-kind donation of Civic Center Use for up to two events and social
media advertising of events.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the District of Port Hardy submit the PlanH grant application for $5,000 to BC  
Healthy Communities AND THAT if the application is successful the District of Port  
Hardy provide staff support to file and financially administer the PlanH grant, provide 
an in-kind donation of the Civic Center use for up to two events and social media  
advertising of events. 

H. COUNCIL REPORTS

Councillors Pat Corbett-Labatt, Dennis Dugas, Rick Marcotte, Fred Robertson, John 
Tidbury and Leightan Wishart reported on their recent meetings and other activities 
they attended and/or undertook on behalf of the District. 

Councillor Robertson advised the Association of Vancouver Island & Coastal 
Communities (AVICC) is looking for host cities for 2020 and 2021 conventions. It was 
suggested Council create an ad hoc committee to look at hosting the AVICC 2020 or 
2021 Convention in Port Hardy. 

Council directed staff to investigate the process to host an AVICC Convention. 

Councillor Corbett-Labatt commented that the District has a bylaw prohibiting smoking 
in parks but there is no signage posted at Carrot Park.  

Council members commented that the Port Hardy Fire Rescue 50th Anniversary event 
was very successful and well organized.  

I. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Draft minutes of the Emergency Planning Committee meeting held June 25, 2018
were received for information.

8



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting – July 10, 2018         4 

2018-140 
APPROVED 
COUNCIL POLICIES 
CP6.13, CP6.15  
& CP6.16  

2018-141 
BYL 1080-2018 
AMEND ZONING BL 
1010-2013 
ADOPTED 

2018-142 
CANNABIS RETAIL 
APPLICATIONS 

2018-143 
BYL 1082-2018 
AMEND BL 1027-
2014 ADOPTED 

J. STAFF REPORTS

1. Accounts Payable for June 2018 was received for information.

2. Lynda Sowerby, Director of Finance (July 10/18) re: Employer Health Tax and
Medical Services Plan premiums was received for information.

3. Verbal Report, Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate Services re: Council
Policies CP 6.13 Workplace Bulling and Harassment, CP 6.15 Preventing
Violence in the Workplace and CP6.16 Code of Conduct.

Heather Nelson-Smith advised the policies require updating to meet WorkSafe 
regulations and the upcoming federal legalization of recreational cannabis. 

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT Council Policy CP6.13 Workplace Bulling and Harassment; Council Policy 
CP6.15 Preventing Violence in the Workplace and Council Policy CP6.16 Code of 
Conduct be accepted as presented. 

K. CURRENT BYLAWS AND RESOLUTIONS

1. Bylaw No. 1080-2018, A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 1010-2013 (Cannabis
Regulations). For Adoption.

Council discussion included waiting for final federal and provincial adoption and 
issuing of regulations before proceeding with adoption of Bylaw No. 1080-2018 

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT Bylaw No. 1080-2018, A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 1010-2013 
(Cannabis Regulations) be adopted. 

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
that the District of Port Hardy cannot accept application from cannabis retailors until 
the Provincial Government issues final legislation and regulations regarding recreation 
cannabis sales.  

2. Bylaw 1082-2018, A Bylaw to Amend District of Port Hardy Garbage and
Recycling Bylaw No. 1027-2014. For Adoption.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT Bylaw 1082-2018, A Bylaw to Amend District of Port Hardy Garbage and 
Recycling Bylaw No. 1027-2014 be adopted. 

3. Lynda Sowerby, Director of Finance (July 10/18) re: 2018 Council Remuneration
Review –  Report of the Remuneration Committee was received for information.

Lynda Sowerby reviewed the process and history of the Remuneration Committee and 
presented the findings and financial implications of the recommendations to Council. 
Council was advised the suggested 5.88% increase is to account for changes in 
federal legislation Bill C-34 whereby elected officials lose their non-accountable 
allowances. The Committee’s goal was to find a base earning where the proposed net 
pay would be equivalent to that under the upcoming Bill C-34. 

Bylaw 1083-2018, A Bylaw to Provide for the Payment of Council Member 
Remuneration and Expenses.  For First, Second and Third Readings. 

Council discussion included: 
• Without the increase the new remuneration will be less than the current amount.
• Consumer Price Index (CPI) included as a standard clause.
• The need to have a reasonable remuneration to attract candidates.

9



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting – July 10, 2018         5 

2018-144 
BYL 1083-2018 
COUNCIL 
REMUNERATION 
1ST 2ND 3RD 
READINGS 

2018-145 
ADJOURNMENT 

• Council members or those thinking of running for Council generally do it for the
community not monetary gain.

• Union and non-union staff increases generally in the 2% range.
• 2018 property tax increase at 4% and the suggested increase equates to a tax

increase of 0.21%.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT Bylaw 1083-2018, A Bylaw to Provide for the Payment of Council Member 
Remuneration and Expenses receive First, Second and Third Readings. 

Councillors Pat Corbett-Labatt, Dennis Dugas and Fred Robertson were 
opposed to this motion. 

L. ADJOURNMENT

Moved 
THAT the meeting be adjourned. Time: 7:45pm 

CORRECT  APPROVED 

______________________ _______________________ 
DIRECTOR OF  MAYOR 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

10



MINUTES  
DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
WEDNESDAY JULY 18, 2018 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL HALL 
7360 COLUMBIA STREET 

PRESENT: Deputy Mayor Pat Corbett-Labatt, Dennis Dugas, Rick Marcotte, Fred Robertson 

ALSO PRESENT: Leslie Driemel, Recording Secretary 

REGRETS: Mayor Hank Bood; Councillors Leightan Wishart and John Tidbury; Allison 
McCarrick, CAO; Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate Services; Lynda 
Sowerby, Director of Financial Services Abbas Farahbakhsh, Director of 
Operational Services  

MEDIA: None MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:   Two 

COW 2018-033 
APPROVAL OF 
AGENDA AS 
PRESENTED 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Deputy Mayor Pat Corbett-Labatt called the meeting to order at 2:10 pm and 
acknowledged that the meeting is being held on the traditional territory of the Kwakiutl 
people. 

B.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole meeting of July 18, 2018 be 
accepted as presented. 

C. DELEGATION

1. Mark Wilson, Vice President, Strategy & Community Engagement and Darin
Guenette, Manager, Public Affairs -  British Columbia Ferry Services Inc.
re: Direct service between Port Hardy - Bella Coola

Letter to Office of BC Ferries Commissioner dated March 20, 2017 re: Mid-Coast
Ferry Service was received for information.

Mr. Wilson thanked Council members for the opportunity to meet with them and 
update them on the Northern Sea Wolf direct service between Port Hardy and Bella 
Coola.  Discussion included: 
- A time line review of the project from announcement of the direct seasonal ferry

service in 2016 to the announcement of delay of service to 2019.
- Timeline to build a new vessel vs search out and retrofit and existing vessel that

meeting the required capacity levels.
- The upgrades and design elements that were needed to retrofit the chosen

vessel.
- The volume of work, material challenges and final testing needed prior to

hand over that couldn’t be safely accomplished in time for this season.
- How delays have affected route service and tourism operators.
- How BC Ferries has handled cancellations, re-bookings, refunds and waitlists.
- Limited vehicle space on the Nimpkish and that all travellers may not be

accommodated.

11

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of Committee of the Whole – July 18, 2018 2 

COW 2018-034 
ADJOURNMENT 

- Review of the services now being offered on the Central Coast routes on the
Northern Expedition between Port Hardy and Bella Bella and on the Nimpkish
between Bella Bella and Bella Coola.

- Booked but not used reservations on Central Coast routes have been an issue.
- The vehicle capacity of the vessels and concerns raised by the District during the

consultation period. It was commented that the size and capacity was a provincial
government decision not that of BC Ferries.

- Opportunities for tourism operators to work with BC Ferries on visitor/tourism
travel packages.

- Redeployment of the Northern Adventure on Sept 16 to provide two weekly
round-trip sailings for the Bella Coola direct service until the end of the
summer season on October 11.

- Issues and concerns with reservation call center staff, particularly their
knowledge of the Central Coast area and technical issues with the reservation
system.

- 3-4% growth in volume of BC Ferries services for the last 2-3 years.
- Population growth on Vancouver Island has increased southern route traffic and

Duke Point sailings have increased due to lower mainland bypass route.
- BC Ferries looking to go from 17 vessel classifications to 5 and standardization of

docks to allow easier re-deployment of vessels.
- BC Ferries looking at 24-hour sailings and discount/flexibility programs to

promote bookings at non-peak times and routes.
- Concerns regarding overnight stays at BC Ferry terminals causing local

campgrounds to lose out on business.
- The establishment of a freight service that would be beneficial to Central Coast

communities.

Council members thanked Mr. Wilson and Mr. Guenette for their informative update 
and for listening to the various issues and concerns in our community. 

D. ADJOURNMENT

MOVED 
THAT the Committee of the Whole adjourn.   Time: 3:00 pm 

CORRECT  APPROVED 

__________________________________ ______________________ 
DIRECTOR MAYOR 
OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

12



File: 0550-06 

ITEM ACTION REGULAR MEETING 
July 10, 2018 

WHO STATUS /COMMENTS 

L Dyck Planning Group re: PlanH grant 
application 

Approved: DPH submit the grant 
application for $5,000 AND THAT if 
the application is successful the DPH 
provide staff support to file and 
financially administer grant, provide 
an in-kind donation of Civic Center 
use for up to two events and social 
media advertising of events 
-Submit grant
-Administer grant finances
-Arrange in kind use of civic center
and advertise as requested

LS 
LS 

HN-S 

Grant submitted 

BC Ferries – Invite to meet with Council 
re Port Hardy to Bella Coola direct 
service route 

Contact Mark Wilson and invite to 
meet with Council re Port Hardy to 
Bella Coola direct service route 

AMc Done 
COW held July 18 

Filomi Days Committee request for 
additional funding 

Approved: $1,400 in additional 
funding 
- issue cheque LS 

Done 

Hosting AVICC Convention Staff to investigate the process to 
host HN-S Staff report to follow 

No smoking signage in Carrot Park -Post signage BF Done 
ITEM ACTION REGULAR MEETING 

June 26, 2018 
WHO STATUS /COMMENTS 

Rainbow Crosswalk Direction to staff, refer to 2019 
budget discussions 

LS 

Tourism Advisory Committee meeting 
held June 7, 2018. Recommendation to 
Council: “THAT the Tourism Advisory 
Committee recommends to Council an 
increase to the District’s sponsorship 
level of the Tourism Vancouver Island 
Conference being held in Port Hardy 
September 25-27, 2018 to that suitable 
for a host community.” 

Approved:  Increase to Eagle level 
($750) 
-Advise of increase. Done
-Issue cheque for difference from
Marmot ($300) to Eagle ($750) LS Done 

ITEM ACTION REGULAR MEETING 
June 12, 2018 

WHO STATUS /COMMENTS 

State of the Island Economic Summit 
Oct 24-25, 2018 

Approved: to register 2 council 
members 

LD Done: 1 Registration 

13

AGENDA



AGENDA

14



15



Hello VINTAC, 

Below and attached is a request from the Bella Coola Valley Tourism group for a letter of support for 
their request to BC Ferries, asking them to start their 2019 schedule earlier in the season. Pat has 
suggested that I gather responses from the committee in order to determine if there is support from the 
tourism group to submit a letter. 

Please reply all to this message by Thursday June 28 with your support or opposition to this letter of 
support. 
Thank you, 

Joli White 
Vancouver Island North Tourism 
250 902‐8281 

From: info@bellacoola.ca [mailto:info@bellacoola.ca]  
Sent: June‐14‐18 5:35 PM 
To: Joli White <Joli@vancouverislandnorth.ca> 
Subject: Letter of Support 

Hello Joli, 

I hope you are doing well. 

As you are probably aware, our tourism industry has 
been negatively impacted with a high number of 
cancellations resulting from BC Ferries’ delayed Route 
28 service and a 'buggy' new booking confirmation 
system. 

We, at Bella Coola Valley Tourism have drafted a letter 
(see attached) to offset this loss by requesting BC 
Ferries schedule an earlier start for next summer's 
service to this area. 

I am writing today to inquire if it would be possible for 
Vancouver Island North Tourism to agree to write a 
letter of support (draft template attached) for BCVT's 
request. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 
Tom Hermance, President 
Bella Coola Valley Tourism 
www.bellacoola.ca 

Facebook 

16

AGENDA



Box 670
Bella Coola, BC
V0T 1C0

Phone: 250 799 5202
Email: info@bellacoola.ca
www.bellacoola.ca

Bella Coola Valley Tourism

Mark Wilson
BC Ferries
Vice President
Strategy and Community Engagement

June 5, 2018

Dear Mr. Wilson,

I am writing this letter on behalf of the members of Bella Coola Valley Tourism to express our disappointment 
regarding the delayed start of BC Ferries newest vessel, the Northern Sea Wolf.
As you are aware, the members of Bella Coola Valley Tourism, in partnership with the Nuxalk Nation, the Central 
Coast Regional District, and many other partners worked together for several years to reinstate the improved Port 
Hardy - Bella Coola sailing route since its cancellation in 2012. 

There has been significant investment by many of our local members in the Valley, including private and public 
infrastrucuture development as well as significant marketing of the route by tourism organizations and BC Ferries. 
It has been extremely difficult and embarrassing to communicate to our guests that they will not be traveling on 
the new vessel they originally reserved, but instead will be spending many long hours on BC Ferries smallest and 
least-equipped vessel, the Nimpkish.

We understand that BC Ferries is doing everything it can to ready the vessel for mid-July, but this does not make 
up for the losses local tourism operators have already suffered. 

We are concerned that travelers have lost confidence: both in BC Ferries and our region as a whole. Safe, reliable 
and enjoyable transportation is essential for all regions of our province, and we will certainly see more visitors 
changing their plans if they feel this basic need cannot be met.

Additionally, we have received a large number of emails from visitors who have decided not to visit our region this 
year because the communication from BC Ferries regarding Route 28 has been confusing and inadequate. This 
causes a ripple effect for tourism operators all the way into the interior of the province and beyond.

In response to this unfortunate situation, we are proposing that 2019 Route 28 sailings begin in mid-May rather 
than mid-June. While we appreciate BC Ferriess offer to extend the service into mid-October, our research shows 
tourism drops off dramatically during October and that an earlier start in the spring of 2019 would be much more 
advantageous for our area.

Please find attached several letters of support for this proposal. We sincerely hope you will consider our request. 
I look forward to your reply.

Sincerely,

Tom Hermance
President
Bella Coola Valley Tourism

We feel this new schedule will better serve our region as a whole and will indicate BC Ferries confidence in Route 
28, which in turn will bolster the confidence of visitors considering a trip to our region.

17



ORGANIZATION LOGO/LETTERHEAD 
DATE 

Mark Wilson 
BC Ferries 
Vice President 
Strategy and Community Engagement 

Dear Mr. Wilson, 

We are writing this letter to support Bella Coola Valley Tourism’s request for an earlier start to 
the 2019 season with the Northern Sea Wolf. 

As you are aware, the delayed start of the Northern Sea Wolf has resulted in negative impacts on 
tourism operators in our region, many of whom invested heavily in its return. Tourism plays an 
important role in our local economy and after the devastating wildfires of 2017, hopes were high 
that the Northern Sea Wolf would play a large role in our 2018 recovery. 

We understand that BC Ferries is doing everything it can to ready the vessel for mid-July, but 
this does not make up for the losses local tourism operators have already suffered. 

Bella Coola Valley Tourism has requested that a mid-May start in 2019 is preferable to an 
extension of the 2018 season into October. We believe that the work Bella Coola Valley Tourism 
has done, both in terms of relationship-building and tourism research, supports this request. 

Please consider this letter an official endorsement from the ____________________ for Bella 
Coola Valley Tourism’s request to begin the Northern Sea Wolf in mid-May of 2019. 

Sincerely, 

__________________ 

18



19

AGENDA



20

AGENDA



21

AGENDA



August 2, 2018 

To Whom It May Concern, 

The Vancouver Island Economic Alliance respectfully requests a letter of support for our 
application for Rural Dividend funding to work with industry, community and First Nations 
stakeholders to pilot ideas for waste wood recovery and fuel reduction to improve industry 
access to fibre and mitigate fire hazard. 

This pilot project will take place in the Lake Cowichan area with the belief that results that are 
successfully modeled will have direct application to communities throughout the Island region. 
The application has been endorsed by the Town of Lake Cowichan, Cowichan Lake Community 
Forest Cooperative, Centurion Lumber, and the Cowichan Valley Regional District. Your letter of 
support will further demonstrate the importance of this work to provincial decision makers. 

Since the Island Wood Industry Forum hosted by VIEA on March 23rd, the Economic 
Alliance has forwarded recommendations drafted at the forum to the Minister of Natural 
Resources, met with an Assistant Deputy Minister, and participated in two government 
facilitated meetings in Nanaimo and Port Alberni. We are cautiously optimistic that the present 
confluence of industry factors is creating a climate conducive to positive change. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Please send your letter to: 
george@viea.ca 
George Hanson, President 
VIEA 
Box 76, Station A 
Nanaimo, BC, V9R 5K4 
250-667-5225

22

AGENDA

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/employment-business/economic-development/support-organizations-community-partners/rural-economic-development/rural-dividend
http://www.town.lakecowichan.bc.ca/
http://www.cowichanlake.ca/bus/forestcoop/
http://www.cowichanlake.ca/bus/forestcoop/
http://centurionlumber.com/
https://www.ecdevcowichan.com/
http://viea.ca/economic-resources-initiatives/initiatives/forestrywood-industries-initiative/
http://viea.ca/about-viea-membership/what-we-do/
http://viea.ca/about-viea-membership/what-we-do/
https://gallery.mailchimp.com/e4accede0630e63f0a4aa747d/files/a4d1e9fc-e339-48f5-b08c-fdaf029d971a/VI_Wood_Industries_Recommendations_2018.docx
mailto:george@viea.ca


George Hanson, President 
Vancouver Island Economic Alliance 
P.O. Box 76, Station A 
Nanaimo, BC, V9R 51<4 

Dear George, 

Re: Letter of Support on Proposed Pilot Project 

On behalf of ________________, please accept this as confirming our support for your proposed 
pilot project to explore mutually beneficial, cost-effective, business to business solutions to 
make waste fibre accessible to manufacturing operations on Vancouver Island where improved 
local access to wood fibre will be critically important to the economy of rural communities. We 
well know that access to fibre is the number concern for all wood processors in our region. 

We also share the concerns of communities and First Nations around the province regarding 
the issue of community safety and uninterrupted economy in relation to forest fires. We agree 
with your proposal to find innovative ways to manage wood waste better so as to mitigate 
forest fire hazard while also helping local wood industries. 

We are very pleased that the Economic Alliance has chosen to pursue this pilot project to 
better manage 'waste' fibre. Any initiative that is meant to ensure and expand the economic 
well-being of on Vancouver Island can only deserve our wholehearted support. 

Yours truly, 

23



24

AGENDA



25

AGENDA



MINUTES OF THE  
DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

FIRST NATIONS RELATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 
TUESDAY JULY 10, 2018 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL HALL, 7360 COLUMBIA STREET 

Committee 
Members: Councillor Pat Corbett-Labatt (Chair), Councillor Leightan Wishart 

Also Present: Councillor Fred Robertson 

Staff: Allison McCarrick, CAO; Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate Services 

FNRC  
2018-020 
AGENDA JULY 
10/18 ACCEPTED 

FNRC 
2018-021 
MINUTES OF 
JUNE 14/18 
ACCEPTED 

ACTION ITEM 
REVIEW 

FNRC  
2018-022 
ADJOURNMENT 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Councillor Pat Corbett-Labatt called the meeting to order at 3:15 pm and 
acknowledged that the meeting is being held on the traditional territory of the Kwakiutl 
people.    

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved/Seconded/Carried  
THAT the agenda for the First Nations Relations Committee meeting of 
July 10, 2018 be accepted as presented. 

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

1. Minutes of the First Nations Relations Committee meeting held June 14, 2018.

Moved/Seconded/Carried  
THAT the minutes of the First Nations Relations Committee meeting held June 14, 
2018 be accepted as presented. 

D. DELEGATIONS

1. No delegations

E. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Action Items were reviewed.

2. Summer Games project.
No information -  carried forward.

F. CORRESPONDENCE

No correspondence.

G. NEW BUSINESS

No new business.

H. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS

No reports.

I. NEXT MEETING DATE:  Next meeting September 25th at 3:00 pm.
October 9, November 13 and December 11.

J. ADJOURNMENT

Moved 
THAT the meeting be adjourned.  Time: 3:18 pm 

DRAFT

26

AGENDA



MINUTES OF THE DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 
OPERATIONAL SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD MONDAY JULY 16, 2018 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL HALL 

7360 COLUMBIA STREET

Committee 
Members: Councillors Dennis Dugas, Rick Marcotte (Chair), Leightan Wishart 

Also Present: Councillor John Tidbury 

Staff: Heather Nelson-Smith, Director Corporate Services; Abbas Farahbakhsh, Director of 
Operational Services; Leslie Driemel, Recording Secretary 

Regrets: Allison McCarrick, CAO

OP SCVS  
2018-022 
AGENDA JULY 
16/18 ACCEPTED 
AS AMENDED 

OP SCVS  
2018-023 
MINUTES JUNE 
18/18 ACCEPTED 

ACTION ITEMS 

CAPITAL LIST 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Councillor Rick Marcotte called the meeting to order at 3:00pm.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Councillor Marcotte requested addendum to the agenda:
G. New Business
3. Boat Launch at Bear Cove
4. Hardy Bay Road repair at Robert Scott School
5. Byng Road/Hwy 19 intersection
6. Banning Plastics

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the agenda for the Operational Services Committee meeting of July 16, 
2018 be accepted as amended. 

C. MINUTES

1. Minutes of the Operational Services Committee meeting held June 18, 2018.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the minutes of the Operational Services Committee meeting held June 18, 
2018 be accepted. 

D. DELEGATIONS

No delegations.

E. BUSINESS ARISING / UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Review and Update of Action Items

Action items were reviewed and updated.

2. Capital Items List / Operations

Abbas Farahbakhsh, Dir. of Operational Services provided a verbal update on
the reservoir project and gen-set/lift station project.

3. Bylaw 1050-2016 - A Bylaw to Regulate Conservation of Water - Stage 3
Exemptions

Heather Nelson-Smith reviewed the proposed changes in wording to Bylaw 1050-
2016 and Sections 3.1(v) and 3.2(c).  

DRAFT

DRAFT

27

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of the Operational Services Committee Meeting – July 16, 2018                                                 2 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

OP SCVS  
2018-024 
RECOMMENDATION 
TO COUNCIL RE: 
BYL 1050-2016 

Moved/Seconded/Carried
The Operational Services Committee recommends: 
THAT Council amend Bylaw 1050-2016 as follows:  
Sec 3.1(v): 
From:  use water to wash sidewalks, driveways or parking lots, exterior windows or 
exterior building surfaces, except as necessary for applying a product such as 
paint, preservative and stucco, preparing a surface prior to paving or repointing 
bricks, or if required by law to comply with health or safety regulations 
To: use water to wash sidewalks, driveways, parking lots, exterior windows, 
exterior building surfaces, fences, retaining walls and all accessory buildings, 
structures except as necessary for applying a product such as paint, preservative 
and stucco, preparing a surface prior to paving or repainting bricks, or if required 
by law to comply with health or safety regulations and; 

Sec 3.2(c): 
From: Commercial operations requiring the use of water to further business.  
To: Commercial operations requiring the use of water to continue and maintain 
current service levels of its business operations. 

F. CORRESPONDENCE

No correspondence.

G. NEW BUSINESS

1. Councillor Dugas re: 4-way stop signs at Douglas St (Hwy 19)/Granville Street.

Councillor Dugas relayed concerns regarding signage at the 4-way stop signs at  
Douglas St (Hwy 19)/Granville Street. It was commented that the current signage 
Is not large enough and installation of rumble strips may be a solution to slow  
traffic.  

Committee discussion included: 
- Requesting RCMP initiate radar patrols in the area.
- Use of electronic speed indicator signs may slow drivers.
- Accessing ICBC funding for electronic speed indicator signs.
- Current signage is standard size.
- Tourists seem to be the primary issue.
- Installing a wide speed bump to slow traffic.
- Current flashing stop signs are larger than standard stop signs.
- The number of signs on way into town and that some may be blocking the view

of others.

Abbas Farahbakhsh advised 
- Studies have been done regarding rumble strips and strips are usually taken out

after a period.
- There seems to be less ICBC funding is available for projects
- Speed bumps, if hit hard can cause accidents especially for trucks and buses

and are not usually installed on truck routs

The Committee requested staff investigate the cost of electronic speed indicator 
signs and request the RCMP patrol the area more frequently. 

2. Councillor Dugas re: Cemetery sign.

Councillor Dugas advised he has received comments and concerns regarding the 
signage at the cemetery. 

Heather Nelson-Smith reviewed the recent efforts taken regarding the clean-up of 
memorials that had become unsightly at the cemetery and the posting of  
temporary and permanent signage. 

It was commented that Council wants to be informed of new items. 

ADDENDUM: 

3. Boat Launch at Bear Cove

DRAFT

DRAFT

28



District of Port Hardy 
Minutes of the Operational Services Committee Meeting – July 16, 2018                                                 3 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

OP SCVS  
2018-025 
RECOMMENDATION 
TO COUNCIL TO 
SURVEY LOCAL 
BUSINESSES RE 
PLASTIC BAG BAN 

OP SCVS  
2018-026 
ADJOURNMENT 

Committee discussion included: 
- The minus and extremely low tides that are causing launching issues
- ramp drop off area needs to be fixed with adequately sized and installed rip rap
- Past practice of laying matting over the exposed rocks

Abbas Farahbakhsh advised that:
- A risk assessment regarding signage in the area has been done and the signage

is adequate.
- In previous years crews have placed rocks at the drop off area but over time they

are removed by tide and wave action.

4. Repair of Hardy Bay Road at Robert Scott School

Discussion included:
- Contacting Ministry of Transportation and request the roadway be fixed
- Issue was a District sewer main break last year.
- Repair on list for Operational Services.

Abbas Farahbakhsh advised he will check with Ministry of Transportation regarding 
fixing the site but as the damage was from a District breakdown, the District may 
be responsible.   

5. Byng Road/Hwy 19 intersection

Councillor Marcotte commented:
- That the alders at the Byng Road/Hwy 19 intersection are getting larger and will

soon become a visibility issue.
- That drivers often do not yield when coming onto Hwy 19 at the intersection.

Abbas Farahbakhsh will contact the Ministry of Transportation and request they 
remove the alders. 

6. Banning Plastic Bags

Committee discussion included:
- Discarded bags are a problem in the community.
- Committee as place to start the discussion to ban plastic bags.
- Enforcement an issue.
- Banning plastic bags should be a Provincial Government initiative.
- Single use bags vs recyclable bags vs compostable bags and their recycling

streams.
- Other communities have undertaken implementing a ban.
- Survey to local businesses over the winter months to see if they are open to the

idea.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
The Operational Services Committee recommends: 
THAT Council direct staff to survey local businesses over the winter months to see 
if they are open to a ban on plastic bags.  

H. STAFF REPORTS

1. Water Operations Report, June 2018 was received for information.

I. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS

No Reports.

J. NOTICE OF MEETING:  Next scheduled meeting: August 27, 2018.

K. ADJOURNMENT

Moved  
THAT the meeting be adjourned. Time: 3:55pm 

DRAFT

DRAFT

29



District of Port Hardy 
Water Conservation Bylaw 1050-2016 

3. Stage 3 - No Lawn Watering, Severe Water Use Restrictions
3.1 During Stage 3:

(a) no person shall
(i) water a lawn or Boulevard;
(ii) fill a swimming pool, hot tub or garden pond;
(iii) fill or operate a decorative fountain at any time;
(iv) wash a Vehicle or a Boat with Water; or

7 

(v) use water to wash sidewalks, driveways or parking lots, exterior windows or
exterior building surfaces, except as necessary for applying a product such as
paint, preservative and stucco, preparing a surface prior to paving or repointing
bricks, or if required by law to comply with health or safety regulations

Alternative suggestion: 
no person shall "use water to wash sidewalks, driveways, parking lots, exterior windows, 
exterior building surfaces, fences, retaining walls and all accessory buildings, structures 
except as necessary for applying a product such as paint, preservative and stucco, 
preparing a surface prior to paving or repainting bricks, or if required by law to comply 
with health or safety regulations" 

(b) a person may
(i) water trees, shrubs, flowers and vegetables on any day between the hours of

7:00am-9:00am OR 8:00pm-10:00pm if watering is done by hand-held container
or a hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle;

(ii) water newly planted trees, shrubs, flowers and vegetables between the hours
7:00am-9:00am OR 8:00pm-10:00pm only by hand-held container or a hose
equipped with a shut-off nozzle during installation and during the following 24
hours after installation is completed;

(iii) use Micro-irrigation or Drip-irrigation systems to water trees, shrubs, flowers and
vegetables on any day anytime to a maximum of 3 hours; and

(iv) water all playing fields at any time, but only if failure to do so will result in a
permanent loss of plant material.

3.2 As exceptions to the Stage 3 restrictions: 
(a) Nurseries, Farms, turf farms and tree farms are exempted from the restrictions;

(b) Recreational and personal use vehicles and boats may be washed with water only at
car dealerships and commercial car washes using less than 57 litres of water per
Vehicle wash or 50% recirculated Water as long as the total amount of Water,
excluding recirculated Water, does not exceed 57 litres per Vehicle wash;

(c) Commercial operations requiring the use of water to further business. All businesses
must hold a valid business license in Port Hardy. Commercial users must ensure that
water usage is not wasteful and where possible reuse water.

befine "further business" -The rowth of a business' product and service offerings 
Or change sentence to read: 
"Commercial operations requiring the use of water to continue and maintain current 
service levels of its business operations." 

4. Stage 4 - Emergency Severe Water Use Restrictions

30



MINUTES 
DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

PARKS, RECREATION, ARTS & CULTURE COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD WEDNESDAYJULY 18, 2018 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL HALL 
7360 COLUMBIA STREET 

Committee 
Members: Councillors: Fred Robertson (Chair), John Tidbury and Pat Corbett-Labatt 

Staff:  Abbas Farahbakhsh, Director of Operational Services; Leslie Driemel, 
Recording Secretary  

Regrets: Allison McCarrick, CAO; Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate 
Services 

PRA&CC  
2018-025 
AGENDA 
APPROVED AS 
AMENDED 

PRA&CC  
2018-026 
MINUTES 
JUNE 20/18 
ACCEPTED 

DELEGATION: 
SERENA 
NEUMERSCHIT
SKY RE: 
FENCED DOG 
PARK 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Councillor Robertson called the meeting to order at 3:06 pm.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Councillor Corbett-Labatt requested an addendum to the agenda under:
G. New Business
1. Port-a-potty at Ring Road ball field.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT Parks, Recreation, Arts & Culture Committee agenda for July 18, 2018 be 
accepted as amended. 

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

1. Minutes of the Parks, Recreation, Arts & Culture Committee meeting held
June 20, 2018.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the minutes of the Parks, Recreation, Arts & Culture Committee meeting held 
June 20, 2018 be accepted.  

D. DELEGATIONS

1. Serena Neumerschitsky re: Fenced Dog Park

Councillor Robertson introduced Ms. Neumerschitsky to those present.

Ms. Neumerschitsky reviewed with the Committee the need for a fenced dog park in  
In Port Hardy. It was commented that there is a need for dogs to socialize in a safe  
environment away from roadways and dog owners need a place to go with their pets  
that is off leash and away from the public. Ms Neumerschitsky advised she is  
willing to work to create a community outreach project for fundraising and contact  
contractors about donating time and equipment for the project. She is looking for help 
from the Committee regarding identifying possible locations. 

Discussion with the Committee included: 
- The Committee is already looking at various locations for a fenced dog park.
- Fencing costs have been estimated at approximately $30,000 for 150 meters of

fencing.
- If done on District property dog park construction standards need to be met

regarding size, fencing, and installation methods.
- Who is responsible for finding out standards.

DRAFT

31

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 2 
Minutes of the Parks, Recreation, Arts & Culture Committee Meeting – July 18, 2018 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

ACTION ITEMS 

CAPITAL LIST 
REVIEW 

DIR. 
COMMUNITY 
SERVICES JOB 
DESCRIPTION 
REVIEW 

- Work party / volunteer construction on District property not possible due to
WorkSafeBC and liability issues.

- A review of information previously brought forward regarding utilizing a local
brownfield site as a dog park, the site is still undergoing environmental monitoring.
and the property owner is not interested in the project.

- A review of the District Committee process to bring a project forward to Council
and the budget process.

- Use of private property for a fenced dog park.

Ms Neumerschitsky commented that:
- She is wanting to proceed and get the community involved.
- That the Committee seems to be only presenting her with rules of process and

bureaucracy.
- As there is no specific location available spearheading community action can’t be

started.

Councillor Robertson advised the Committee can only make recommendations to  
Council and not move forward on their own to get a project started. The Committee 
will continue discussion on the project at the August Committee meeting and when  
sufficient information is available it can then bring forward a recommendation for  
Council regarding a fenced dog park.  Any project will also have go through the 2019 
District budget approval process. 

Ms.  Neumerschitsky requested she be contacted once details are worked out so that 
she can proceed to spearhead community action for a fenced dog park. 

BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1.  Review of Action Items.

Cedar Heights Park
- Public Works has mowed and brushed the site. More work may be done when

trail area dries.

Mural Project 

- Ocean Argyle has started her mural project. The Committee requested that an
unveiling event be organized when the project is completed.

Dog Park 
The Committee discussed: 
- Who cleans up dog park sites: is it self-managed by users utilizing supplied

doggie refuse bags, is scooping done by municipal employees prior to mowing
and what are health hazards to employees.

- Research needs to be done on dog park standards regarding fencing and sizes.
- Accurate fencing costs need to be determined for the considered sites.

2.  Capital Review List.

Abbas Farahbakhsh, Director of Operational Services reviewed the Capital Projects 
List including: 
- Multiplex Project.
- Arena projects.
- Garbage bins for Market Street.

3. Draft Director of Community Services job description was received for information.

Councillor Robertson was requested the Draft Director of Community Services job
description be brought back to the August committee meeting.

DRAFT

32



District of Port Hardy 3 
Minutes of the Parks, Recreation, Arts & Culture Committee Meeting – July 18, 2018 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

PRA&CC  
2018-027 
ADJOURN 

E. CORRESPONDENCE

No correspondence.

F. NEW BUSINESS

1. Port-a-potties at ball fields.

Committee members commented on the need for a port-a-potty to be located at Park 
Drive ballfield.  

Abbas Farahbakhsh reviewed with the Committee current locations of the District 
owned units and recent vandalism issues.  Public Works staff will look at the 
condition of the units currently at Storey’s beach and if there is one in suitable 
condition that can be cleaned up it will be brought to the Park Drive Ballfield. 

G. COUNCIL / COMMITTEE REPORTS

No reports.

H. NOTICE OF MEETING: 3:00 pm Wednesday August 15, 2018.

UPCOMING 2018 MEETING DATES: September 19, October 17, November 21, 
December 19 (currently scheduled for the third Wednesday of each month. 

I. ADJOURNMENT

Moved 
THAT the meeting be adjourned. Time: 4:07 pm 

DRAFT

33



MINUTES OF THE 
DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
JULY 30, 2018  

MUNICIPAL HALL 7360 COLUMBIA STREET  

Committee  Leightan Wishart (Chair); Rick Marcotte, Councillor DPH (Vice-Chair); John Tidbury 
Members: Councillor DPH; Bob Hawkins, DPH Emergency Coordinator; Bob Swain, Emergency 

Coordinator, Gwa’sala-‘Nakwaxda’xw Nations; Norma Hemphill, ESS Co-Ordinator; 
Karla Broadfoot, ESS Volunteer; Wes Olsen, Staff Sargent, RCMP;  Brent Borg Fire 
Chief, Port Hardy Fire Rescue; Gavin Texmo, Deputy Fire Chief, Port Hardy Fire Rescue 

Also Present: Allison McCarrick, CAO; Heather Nelson-Smith, Director of Corporate Services 

Regrets: Jeff Houle, J.D. Petroleum Ltd. DPH; Mike McCulley, Deputy Emergency Coordinator; 
Nat Pottage, BC Ambulance Service 

___________________________________________________________ 

EPC-2018-010 
APPROVAL OF 
AGENDA AS 
PRESENTED 

EPC-2018-011 
MINUTES 
JUN 25/18 
APPROVED 

ACTION ITEMS 
REVIEW 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Leightan Wishart called the meeting to order. Time: 12:01 pm  

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved/Seconded/Carried
THAT the agenda for the Emergency Planning Committee meeting July 30, 
2018 be accepted as presented. 

Chair Wishart requested that Jeff Houle be contacted to see if he is still 
participating in the committee.  

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

1. Minutes of the meeting held June 25, 2018.

Moved/Seconded/Carried 
THAT the minutes of the Emergency Planning Committee meeting held March 26, 
2018 be approved. 

DELEGATIONS 

No Delegations. 

E. BUSINESS ARISING / UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Review and Update of Action Items.

Fall Fair Emergency Preparedness Table 
Volunteers needed to dedicate time to a table at the Fall Fair this coming 
September. Focus on personal preparedness. Heather to send a snap shot of all 
of the items we have for the event and look into small prize items. Leightan, Bob 
Hawkins, Karla Broadfoot and Norma Hemphill will allocate time to the event.  

Roles & Responsibilities Training 
Still on hold. EMBC training videos created for emergency committees and 
Councils, as part of the 2018 election education programs, may be used.  

Generator for Reception Center 
Ongoing: Approved in 2018 budget. Heather Nelson-Smith will work with the Dir. 
Finance to purchase. 

Emergency Plan Review 
December Review 

DRAFT

DRAFT

34

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 
Emergency Planning Committee minutes – July 30, 2018 2 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

EPC-2018-010 
ADJOURNMENT 

F. CORRESPONDENCE

No Correspondence

G. NEW BUSINESS

Karla Broadfoot brought forward an issue with communications between First 
Responders and ESS for any events in and around Port Hardy that displace 
persons from their residence and how ESS can help.  
The discussion included: 

- The need to have a point of contact for the Fire Department to call.
- Bob Hawkins knows all of the contacts (ESS / EMBC etc). First

Responders to contact Bob directly he will make calls as needed.
- Bob Swain to discuss with Gwa’sala-‘Nakwaxda’xw Emergency Services to

ensure that ESS is activated during these times.

H. NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday September 24, 2018

Upcoming 2018 Meeting Dates
Bimonthly on the last Monday of the month: November 26 

I. ADJOURNMENT

THAT the meeting be adjourned. Time: 12:27pm 

DRAFT

35



36

AGENDA



37



38



39

AGENDA



40

AGENDA



Staff Report: Development Variance Permit DVP 02-2018 Page2 

subject to the application (Local Government Act and Development Application Procedures Bylaw). 
In this case, notices were mailed to the owners of 9 properties. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff has prepared Development Variance Permit DVP-02-2018 shown on pages 4 and 5 for 
Council's consideration. 

"THA T Council approves Development Variance Permit DVP-02-2018 to vary the provisions of 
section 6.3 (d) of Port Hardy Zoning Bylaw No. 1010-2013, to: 

1) Reduce the principal use building front yard setback in the R-2 Zone from 7. 6 metres to 3
metres to accommodate an increased entry and stairs; and

2) Reduce the principal use building front yard setback in the R-2 Zone from 7. 6 metres to
5. 70 metres to accommodate deck space.

With respect to the property legally described as Lot 11, Block A, Section 1, Plan 21541, 
Township 8, PIO 003-412-822. 

AND FURTHER THAT the Director of Corporate Services be authorized to execute the permit 
accordingly. " 

Respectfully submitted, 

(_{].� 
Heather Nelson-Smith, 
Director of Corporate Services 

I agree with the recommendation, 

t�J� ... 

District of Port Hardy 
41



42



43



44



45

AGENDA



Staff Report - Business License application for a Cannabis Retail Store - User Rates and Fees for 2018 

August 14,2018 Page3 

staff time involved for review of the application, Council review and approval, and possibly additional 
costs such as advertisement. 

Staff estimates the cost associated with the LCRB application to be approximately $750. If a public 
hearing is required, advertising costs to the District are approximately $800. 

Options: 

A) Schedule F - Business License Fees (Bylaw 1073-2017 Schedule F attached):
1) No change to Schedule F; Cannabis retail will fall into Category I and pay the same annual

business license fee as all other Category I businesses.
2) Change Schedule F; add a new Category, exclusive for Cannabis retail. Establish a new

rate based on additional costs related to bylaw enforcement or monitoring of this type of
3) Council provide staff with direction.

B) Schedule N - Liquor Control and Licensing Branch Rates for Applications of Capacity
Increase:
1) Update Schedule to reflect the Provincial name change from Liquor Control and Licensing

Branch to Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch.

C) Schedule N - Liquor Control and Licensing Branch Rates for Applications of Capacity
Increase:
1) No change to Schedule N; continue to review and process LCRB applications at $150

per application and calculate occupancy loads for health and life safety at $150.
2) Change Schedule N; rates as follow:

a. Increase the rate for review and processing of liquor and cannabis regulation
branch applications from $150 to $750.

b. No change on the $150 fee for calculating the occupancy loads
c. Add a $800 fee for public hearing advertising when this is required as part of the

application process
3) Council provide staff with direction.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Fees established should be sufficient to cover costs of providing the service. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

"THA T Schedule F of User Rates and Fees for 2018 Bylaw remain the same as per Option A(1) and 
that Schedule N be amended as per Option 8(2) and that Schedule N be amended as per Option 
C(2) of this report. "

Respectfully submitted, I agree with the recommendation. 

Heather Nelson-Smith 
Director of Corporate Services 

District of Port Hardy 

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53

AGENDA



54



55



56



AGENDA

57



58



59



DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

 BYLAW NO. 1084-2018 

A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 15-2011  

WHEREAS the Council of the District of Port Hardy deems it expedient to amend Bylaw No. 15-2011; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Port Hardy in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows: 

PART 1 CITATION 

1.1 This Bylaw shall be cited as "Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1084-2018 

PART 2 MAP AMENDMENT 

2.1 Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 15-2011 is hereby amended as follows: 

i) MAP 1 LAND-USE of Appendix A – Mapping, is amended by changing the land use
designation for the property legally described as Lot 4, Section 1, Township 8 Plan VIP61541
Except Part in Plan EPP68369 PID 023-107-171 Civic Address 8925 Park Drive from CD-1:
Comprehensive Development Zone 1 to P-2: Institutional as shown on Schedule ‘A’ which is
attached to and forms part of this Bylaw.

PART 3 SEVERABILITY 

3.1 If a portion of this Bylaw is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion 
shall be severed and the remainder of this Bylaw shall be deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed portion. 

Read a first time the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Public Hearing held the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Read a second time the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Read a third time the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Adopted on the ___ day of _____, 2018 

 ____________________________ ______________________ 
  DIRECTOR    MAYOR  
  OF CORPORATE SERVICES   

Certified a true copy of  
Bylaw No. 1084-2018 as adopted. 

____________________________ 
Director of Corporate Services 60

AGENDA



District of Port Hardy 
Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 1084-2018 2 

Schedule "A"  
District of Port Hardy Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment 

Bylaw No. 1084-2018 

61



DISTRICT OF PORT HARDY 

BYLAW NO. 1085-2018 

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 1010-2013 

WHEREAS the Council of the District of Port Hardy deems it expedient to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 
1010-2013; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Port Hardy in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows: 

PART 1 CITATION 

1.1 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "District of Port Hardy Zoning Bylaw Amendment 
Bylaw No. 1085-2018". 

PART 2 AMENDMENTS 

2.1 District of Port Hardy Zoning Bylaw No. 1010-2013 is hereby amended as follows: 

a) Schedule A: Zoning Map – West is amended by changing the applicable zone of the property
legally described Lot 4, Section 1, Township 8 Plan VIP61541 Except Part in Plan EPP68369
PID 023-107-171 Civic Address 8925 Park Drive to P-2: Institutional.

PART 3 SEVERABILITY 

3.1 If a portion of this Bylaw is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion shall be severed and the remainder of this Bylaw shall be deemed to have been adopted 
without the severed portion. 

Read a first time the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Public Hearing held the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Read a second time the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Read a third time the ___ day of _____, 2018 

Adopted on the ___ day of _____, 2018 

  ____________________________ ______________________ 
  DIRECTOR MAYOR  
  OF CORPORATE SERVICES       

Certified a true copy of  
Bylaw No. 1085-2018 as adopted. 

____________________________ 
Director of Corporate Services 

62

AGENDA


	Correspondence VIEA letter of support request.pdf
	VIEA letter of support template.pdf
	Re: Letter of Support on Proposed Pilot Project


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



